
United Nations Conference on Succession of States in Respect of Treaties 
 

Vienna, Austria 
Resumed session 

31 July-23 August 1978 
 

Document:- 
A/CONF.80/C.1/SR.55 

 
55th Meeting of the Committee of the Whole 

 
Extract from volume II of the Official Records of the United Nations Conference on Succession 
of States in Respect of Treaties (Summary records of the plenary meetings and of the meetings 

of the Committee of the Whole) 

 

 

 

 

Copyright © United Nations 



136 Summary records — Committee of the Whole

55th MEETING
Friday, 18 August 1978, at 4,20p.m.

Chairman : Mr. RIAD (Egypt)

Consideration of the question of succession of States in
respect of treaties in accordance with resolutions 3496
(XXX) and 31/18 adopted by the General Assembly on
15 December 1975 and 24 November 1976

[Agenda item 11] {continued)

SECOND REPORT OF THE INFORMAL CONSULTATIONS
GROUP (A/CONF.80/C.1/L.62)1 (concluded)

Articles 12 and 12 bis

Draft resolution concerning article 30

1. Mr. JOMARD (Iraq) said he supported the third
paragraph that the Informal Consultations Group, in its
second report (A/CONF.80/C.1/L.62), recommended
should be added to the text of article 12 proposed by the
International Law Commission, because the new paragraph
marked a step forward in the progressive development of
international law in that it reduced the international
obligations of newly independent States. He also supported
the new article 12 bis proposed by the Group, which
confirmed a rule of law accepted by the international
community and afforded newly independent countries an
opportunity to assure their future.

2. Mr. VREEDZAAM (Suriname) said that, in his view,
newly independent countries must be given the possibility
of rejecting any treaty obligation accepted by the prede-
cessor State and concerning the establishment of military
bases on the territory to which the succession of States
related, as was provided by the new paragraph 3 of article
12 proposed by the Informal Consultations Group. He also
supported the principle of the permanent sovereignty of
every people and every State over its natural wealth and
resources, set forth in the new article 12 bis. He would,
therefore, vote in favour of those two texts, as well as the
draft resolution concerning article 30.

3. Mr. BENDI-FALLAH (Algeria) said that, in a spirit of
conciliation, he would support the contents of the two
provisions submitted by the Informal Consultations Group
in its second report. He would have preferred the draft
submitted by the Argentine delegation, because he con-
sidered that the two provisions formed a whole and that it
would have been better not to separate them so as not to
reduce their force and political significance. He would,
however, vote in favour of the text proposed by the Group,
because that text removed the ambiguities of article 12 as
proposed by the International Law Commission and un-
equivocally affirmed the predominance of the principles of

the self-determination of peoples and the independence of
States.

4. His delegation considered, however, that the reference
to the principles of international law was insufficiently
precise, and it was in a spirit of conciliation that it agreed
to the omission from article 12 bis of a reference to General
Assembly resolution 1803 (XVII) concerning the per-
manent sovereignty of States and peoples over their natural
wealth and resources. Out of legal purism, the Informal
Consultations Group had not referred to that resolution,
but it remained clearly understood that a reference to the
principles of international law constituted, in particular, a
reference to United Nations resolutions, including General
Assembly resolution 1803 (XVII) and the resolution
relating to the Charter of Economic Rights and Duties of
States. His delegation welcomed the fact that the problem
posed by the establishment of foreign military bases and
the principle of the permanent sovereignty of every people
and every State over its natural wealth and resources had
been taken into consideration. It would, therefore, despite
their imperfections, support article 12, paragraph 3, and
article 12 bis in the name of what it considered to be the
progressive development of international law.

5. He shared the concern expressed by the representatives
of Angola, Mali and Romania,2 among others, about the
draft resolution relating to article 30. In his opinion that
draft resolution contributed nothing new and might, rather,
reduce the scope of the provisions of the convention
relating to the settlement of disputes.

6. Mr. RANJEVA (Madagascar) noted that the lege
ferenda nature of the codification of certain rules meant
that the Conference would inevitably have to take a
position on political issues. He was gratified, therefore, that
the Informal Consultations Group had reached a com-
promise solution on the problems dealt with in articles 12
and 12 bis, which were essentially political problems.

7. With respect to article 12, paragraph 3, his delegation
considered that the expression "military bases" must be
taken to mean not only fixed military installations but all
installations that could be used for military purposes as well
as any ground, sea or air facilities or services. It should be
noted that his country had consistently pressed for the
Indian Ocean to be made a peace zone.

8. With respect to article 12 bis, his delegation considered
that the principle of the sovereignty of peoples over their
natural resources must be understood as comprising the
right to exploit natural resources because, if the right of
exploitation was not incontrovertibly acknowledged, the
principle set forth in article 12 bis would be meaningless.

9. Mr. DIENG (Senegal) congratulated the Informal
Consultations Group on having reached a compromise
between positions of principle that at the outset had been
very far apart, reflecting as they had divergent national
interests. Of course, the compromise appeared to him to be

1 See 50th meeting, foot-note I. See 54th meeting, paras. 17, 41 and 46 respectively.



55th meeting - 18 August 1978 137

inadequate, and he would have preferred the Argentine
proposal—supported by the non-aligned countries—which
had preserved the fundamental unity existing between the
question of natural resources and that of military bases.
Nevertheless, out of a desire for conciliation, he would
agree to article 12, paragraph 3, and article 12 bis, as
proposed by the Informal Consultations Group. In article
12 bis, however, it would be preferable, in the phrase "the
principles of international law" to put the word "principle"
in the singular, because the phrase "the principles of
international law" referred to international law in general
and thus somewhat restricted the principle of the per-
manent sovereignty of every people and every State over its
natural wealth and resources. He also hoped that that
principle would be interpreted as comprising the right of
every State to exploit its natural wealth and resources.

10. In his opinion, the draft resolution concerning article
30 served no useful purpose because, when treaty obli-
gations or rights were incompatible there was an objective
dispute and the parties must then resort to consultation and
negotiation under the normal procedure for the settlement
of disputes provided for by the convention.

11. Mr. ASHTAL (Democratic Yemen) said that he
unreservedly supported article 12, paragraph 3, and article
12 bis as proposed by the Informal Consultations Group. In
view of the article on the settlement of disputes recently
adopted by the Committee, he considered that the draft
resolution concerning article 30 served no useful purpose,
but he would have no difficulty in accepting it if the
Committee deemed it necessary.

12. Mr. AHIPEAUD (Ivory Coast) said that his country,
which respected international or regional servitudes im-
posed on States, agreed that treaties relating to boundary
regimes and treaties establishing an international regime
restricting the use of a territory, as in the case of
international waterways and the right of innocent passage
in the territorial sea, should not be affected by a succession
of States. It was not its understanding, however, that the
rules of succession of States did not apply to treaties
providing for the establishment of foreign military bases,
particularly since such bases might have been used to fight
against the successor State. Far from correcting the
tendentious text of article 12 proposed by the International
Law Commission, the new paragraph 3 proposed by the
Informal Consultations Group established the rule of
continuity for treaties concerning the establishment of
foreign military bases; that was unacceptable to his del-
a t ion. That rule might be understandable in the case of
Jnilitary bases of world interest, but even in that case the
treaty should form the subject of negotiations with the
successor State. His delegation therefore reserved its pos-
ition with respect to article 12.

^3. With regard to article 12 bis, his delegation saw no
Ejection to affirming the permanent sovereignty of every
State over its natural wealth and resources, but it was
somewhat apprehensive about the use of the word
People".

14. Mr. KOROMA (Siena Leone), referring to article 12
bis, said that in the Declaration on permanent sovereignty
over natural resources (General Assembly resolution 1803
(XVII)), the General Assembly had mentioned the inalien-
able right of all States freely to dispose of their natural
wealth and resources in accordance with their national
interests and the need to respect the economic indepen-
dence of States and had added that "The exploration,
development and disposition of such resources, as well as
the import of the foreign capital required for these
purposes, should be in conformity with the rules and
conditions which the peoples and nations freely consider to
be necessary or desirable with regard to the authorization,
restriction or prohibition of such activities... In cases where
authorization is granted, the capital imported and the
earnings on that capital shall be governed by the terms
thereof, by the national legislation in force, and by
international law." Article 12 bis, on the other hand,
reserved "the principles of international law affirming the
permanent sovereignty of every people and every State over
its natural wealth and resources". That article referred only
to the principles of international law, whereas the Declar-
ation he had mentioned referred to both international and
national law. In an instrument subsequent to the Declar-
ation, namely the Charter of Economic Rights and Duties
of States, it was not stated that the principles of inter-
national law should govern economic relations. In that
respect, article 12 bis marked no progress. Moreover,
supposing that there was justification for mentioning the
principles of international law in article 12 bis, some
further clarification should be given, because the content of
those principles was uncertain. Neither the principle of
acquired rights nor that of national treatment clarified the
question. The Declaration on permanent sovereignty over
natural resources militated against prompt, adequate and
effective compensation. Moreover, the principles of econ-
omic self-determination, independence, sovereignty and
equality were all principles of international law. Ac-
cordingly, although it appreciated the efforts which the
Informal Consultations Group had made in formulating the
text of article 12 bis, his delegation considered that the
article needed to be improved.

15. Mr. ABOU-ALI (Egypt) said that his delegation
would vote for each of the texts contained in the second
report of the Informal Consultations Group. Article 12,
paragraph 3, enunciated a principle that was absolutely
self-evident. Article 12 bis, although drafted in vague terms,
was entirely acceptable to his country, which had always
supported resolutions affirming the permanent sovereignty
of States over their natural wealth and resources, but, it was
the view of his delegation that such ambiguity could not be
used to derogate from the well-established rules of inter-
national law. The draft resolution concerning article 30 was
not really necessary, for it fell within the framework of the
peaceful settlement of disputes, but his delegation would
join in any consensus on the resolution.

16. Mr. MARESCA (Italy) said he considered that article
12, paragraph 3, was a useful complement to the previous



138 Summary records - Committee of the Whole

two paragraphs. Each term in the new paragraph had been
carefully weighed and that addition was to be welcomed.

17. His delegation also welcomed the new article 12 bis,
for it had always felt that the question covered by that
provision should be dealt with in a separate article. With
regard to the wording, however, it would have been
preferable to use expressions that were more in keeping
with legal terminology. It would be better to speak of rules,
rather than principles, of international law, for rules were
obligatory in character. Again, the term "people" was not
very satisfactory, since permanent sovereignty over natural
wealth and resources did not lie with a people, as an ethnic
entity, but with the successor State, as a legal and political
entity. In short, article 12 bis constituted a referral to the
international legal order. It had the advantage of beginning
with a forceful formulation, but it was regrettable that that
formulation appeared again in article 13, a fact that took
away some of its force.

18. In his opinion, the draft resolution concerning article
30 did not duplicate the provisions on the settlement of
disputes but had a scope of its own; moreover, it related to
the ordinary questions which might arise in the case of a
uniting of States and not to real disputes.

19. In order to make it quite clear that the process of
consultation was separate from that of negotiation, the
word " o f should be inserted before the word "nego-
tiation" in the second preambular paragraph. Consultation
was simply an exchange of views, whereas negotiation
implied the will to reach agreement.

20. Mr. GILCHRIST (Australia) said that article 12, as
drafted by the International Law Commission, had not
posed any serious difficulties for his delegation, even
though it had contained some ambiguities. However, the
paragraph 3 proposed by the Informal Consultations Group
did not present any special difficulties either, and his
delegation would therefore vote in favour of it.

21. In the Informal Consultations Group, his delegation,
out of a desire to facilitate the elaboration of a compromise
text, had not raised any objections to the wording of article
12 bis. Nevertheless, it was somewhat disturbed by the
replacement of the words "relating to" by "affirming". The
former expression showed quite clearly that all the prin-
ciples of international law were applicable, whereas the new
term might be interpreted as restricting the application of
the general principles of international law as far as the
principle of the permanent sovereignty of every people and
every State over its natural wealth and resources was
concerned.

22. His country recognized the permanent sovereignty of
every State over its natural resources but considered that a
State was also under an obligation not to prejudice the
legitimate interests of neighbouring States and other States
dependent on shared natural resources. The principles of
international law did not confer on States the right to
unrestricted exercise of their permanent sovereignty over
their natural resources. The principles of international law
beneficial to neighbouring States should be taken into
account. His delegation wondered whether the exception

set forth in article 12 bis was not now so general that it
might prejudice riparian rights or rights of access that were
essential to the successor State or to another party to the
treaty. Although his delegation was somewhat reassured by
the interpretation placed by a number of other delegations
on article 12 bis, it would have preferred the Group to use a
formula such as "in accordance with international law".
Out of respect for arduously negotiated compromise texts,
his delegation would lend its support to the provisions
contained in the second report of the Informal Con-
sultations Group, on the understanding that the principles,
or rather the rules, of international law would continue to
govern situations such as those he had mentioned.

23. Mr. OSMAN (Somalia) reminded the Committee that,
at the 1977 session, his delegation had stated its views on
article 123 at some length. It fully supported the new
paragraph 3 that was now being proposed.

24. Article 12 bis reaffirmed a principle already em-
bodied in United Nations resolutions, namely, the principle
of the exercise of permanent sovereignty over natural
resources. Reaffirmation of that general principle of inter-
national law was especially justified in a convention on
succession of-States in respect of treaties. It should be
noted that article 12 bis was closely linked to article 12.

25. His delegation regarded the draft resolution con-
cerning article 30 as superfluous, in that machinery for the
settlement of disputes already existed. However, it was not
opposed to the draft resolution if indeed the authors had
particular situations in mind.

26. Mr. FLEISCHHAUER (Federal Republic of Ger-
many) said his delegation had always considered that article
12 was closely linked to article 11. Not only boundary
treaties and treaties on boundary regimes but also treaties
of a territorial character which had been concluded in the
interests of other territories and States should remain
unaffected by a succession of States. It would be idle to
speculate whether article 12 fell under the heading of the
codification or of the progressive development of inter-
national law. In either event, it was based on the same
reasoning as article 11: treaties of a territorial character
which concerned other States should follow the territory to
which they related. It was with that consideration in mind
that his delegation had always supported article 12.

27. With regard to the new paragraph 3 which it was
proposed to add to article 12, he observed that the question
of treaties on the establishment of military, naval or air
bases was altogether outside the scope of the article and
that the exception for which it made provision should not
be extended. If, however, the Conference wished to add a
third paragraph to article 12, his delegation would agree to
the provision.

3 Official Records of the United Nations Conference on Suc-
cession of States in Respect of Treaties, vol. I, Summary records oj
the plenary meetings and of the meetings of the Committee of the
Whole (United Nations publication, Sales No. E.78.V.W.
pp. 134-135, 19th meeting, paras. 54-56.



55th meeting - 18 August 1978 139

28. Article 12 bis was the product of a difficult com-
promise and was based on principles with an ill-defined
content. The article was worded imprecisely in terms that
might give rise to varying interpretations. It would have
been better to refer simply to international law, as had been
suggested in the Informal Consultations Group. Conse-
quently, his delegation would be compelled to abstain if
article 12 bis was put to the vote.

29. As to the draft resolution concerning article 30, it
should be emphasized that there was a gap in that article in
respect of incompatible obligations under treaties that were
kept in force in accordance with the provisions of those
treaties in the former States which had united. The draft
resolution covered precisely a situation of that kind, which
was not automatically covered by the provisions on the
settlement of disputes. His delegation therefore favoured
the adoption of the draft resolution.

30. Mr. KAKOOZA (Uganda) said that, to his mind, the
draft resolution under consideration served no useful
purpose, since an article on the settlement of disputes had
already been adopted. Admittedly, the term "dispute" was
not defined in article 2, but the disagreements to which the
draft resolution related would constitute disputes and
would therefore be covered by the article on the settlement
of disputes. His delegation could see no justification for the
draft resolution and was therefore unable to support it.

31. Mr. LANG (Austria), referring to the statement made
by his delegation in connexion with article 124 at the 1977
session, said his delegation still took the view that article 12
should be adopted as drafted by the International Law
Commission. However, it appreciated the concern which
had been expressed regarding the establishment of military
bases and the exploitation of natural resources. For that
reason, it was ready to agree to the texts proposed for
article 12, paragraph 3, and for article 12 bis. With regard
to article 12, paragraph 3, he reminded the Committee that
his country had formally undertaken not to permit the
establishment of foreign military bases on its territory. As
to article 12 bis, he did not think it essential to reaffirm the
principle of the permanent sovereignty of every people and
every State over its natural wealth and resources, but such a
reaffirmation was none the less acceptable, for it placed
that principle, or rather those principles, within the general
context of international law, so that they were not viewed
as isolated political objectives but as interdependent el-
ements of international law. He had noted the fact that one
of the authors of the proposal had stated in the Informal
Consultations Group that the "clean slate" principle did
not apply to treaty obligations concerning shared natural
resources; the fact that such resources were common to two
or more States meant that they were subject to the rule of
continuity. His delegation hoped that article 12, paragraph
3> and article 12 bis would be adopted by a large majority.

32. Lastly, he pointed out that his delegation had already
had occasion to commend the initiative taken in submitting

Ibid,, pp. 132-133, 19th meeting, paias. 34-44.

a draft resolution on incompatible treaty regimes and that
it supported that draft.

33. Mr. MUSEUX (France) said that he had preferred the
original wording of article 12, despite the element of
imprecision which it had contained. He was afraid that any
addition to that article would only cause further uncer-
tainty about its actual scope instead of improving its
wording. His delegation had no fundamental objection to
the inclusion of an express reference to military bases, since
paragraph 3 was based on the interpretation given by the
International Law Commission. The concept of "military"
bases was not, however, a legal one and the Commission's
commentary could provide only general guidance in the
matter. Admittedly, an agreement on the establishment of a
base did not in itself represent an obligation attaching to a
territory, but each case still had to be assessed on the basis
of its particular characteristics and its true legal nature.

34. With regard to article 12 bis, the wording of which
was not very felicitous, his delegation was of the opinion
that, if it was necessary to say anything at all—and it was
not sure that it was—it would have been preferable to refer
expressly to conformity with international law. His del-
egation would therefore be unable to support that pro-
vision. It was, however, true that the principles of inter-
national law must be interpreted in conformity with
international law and that to refer to those principles was
therefore to refer to customary international law. In
international law, there was, moreover, no principle which
could be applied without being limited by the rules of law.
Although that was how his delegation interpreted that
provision, it could not accept it because its working was too
imprecise.

35. Mr. ROVINE (United States of America) said that
article 12 was perhaps the one which had caused the
International Law Commission the greatest difficulties. The
discussions in the Committee of the Whole had also shown
how complex its provisions were, but the Informal Con-
sultations Group had been able to find an acceptable
solution in the form of the paragraph 3 which it was
proposing to add to the text of article 12. As his delegation
saw it, that paragraph was in the nature of a clarification
concerning military bases.

36. The Informal Consultations Group had, however,
been unable to achieve a genuine consensus on article 12
bis. Although the idea of adding words such as "in
conformity with international law" to that provision had
been widely supported, it had unfortunately been decided
not to retain such wording in the text to be submitted to
the Committee. His delegation could therefore not support
that text. It did, however, interpret the principles referred
to in article 12 bis in the light of General Assembly
resolution 1803 (XVII), relating to permanent sovereignty
over natural resources. In view of those considerations, it
would abstain in the vote on article 12 bis. Nevertheless, it
appreciated the close link between that provision and
article 12 and recognized the value of article 12 bis for
newly independent States. It was his delegation's under-
standing that the "clean slate" principle stated in that



140 Summary records - Committee of the Whole

provision would apply essentially to the consumption or, in
other words, the exploitation of natural resources, and
would not affect territorial regimes relating to such matters
as access to the sea, ports and transit rights on rivers.

37. Referring to the draft resolution concerning article
30, he said that the main purpose of that text was to draw
attention to the problem of the incompatibility of treaty
obligations raised by article 30. It was intended merely as a
statement of fact, not as an implication that the problem
dealt with by the Conference would inevitably give rise to
disputes.

38. Sir Ian SINCLAIR (United Kingdom) noted that, at
the 1977 session, his delegation had stated that, in its
opinion, treaties concerning military bases did not come
within the scope of article 12, which in no way sanctioned
the continuance of such treaties.5 His delegation had no
difficulties with the new paragraph 3 relating to that
question, since it should be regarded as embodying the
agreed interpretation of article 12, with the object of
dispelling any possible doubts. For that reason, his del-
egation considered it important to retain the words "do not
apply", which clearly implied that paragraph 3 could not be
interpreted as applying to treaty obligations relating to the
demilitarization of a particular region or to other regimes-
such as restrictions on military activities—relating to the use
of a particular region.

39. The proposed article 12 bis caused greater difficulties
for his delegation, which would have to abstain if the
provision was put to the vote because its wording was
ambiguous. His delegation had had occasion to express its
point of view on the principle of the permanent sovereignty
of States over their natural resources in the General
Assembly and other bodies. While recognizing the existence
of that principle, it considered that its application was
governed by the principles of international law, which, in
the final analysis, ought to be able to resolve any possible
conflict between the principle of permanent sovereignty
and other concepts, such as that of acquired rights. It was
in that sense that his delegation would interpret article 12
bis. Account should, moreover, be taken of General
Assembly resolution 1803 (XVII), which contained the
most recent generally recognized description of the concept
of the permanent sovereignty of States over their natural
resources and of its relationship to international law. He
also noted that the International Law Commission had first
decided to include article 11 and also article 12, to which
article 12 bis was related, in parti of the draft on the
grounds that those restrictions on the "clean slate" prin-
ciple should have general application. It had then drafted
article 33, paragraph 3, providing for the application of the
"clean slate" rule in cases of separation of parts of a State.
Since the Committee had decided to delete article 33,
paragraph 3, the rules contained in part IV of the draft
were now based exclusively on the principle of ipso jure
continuity. In such circumstances, it appeared that,
although articles 11, 12 and 12 bis were, in principle,
generally applicable, they must be interpreted and applied

5 Ibid, p. 137, 20th meeting, para. 17.

mainly, if not exclusively, in the light of the provisions of
part III of the draft, which related to newly independent
States.

40. With regard to the draft resolution concerning article
30, he said that he shared the view expressed by the
representative of the United States.

41. Mr. EUSTATHIADES (Greece) said that it might
have been thought that the question of military bases did
not come within the scope of an article dealing with
territorial regimes. In fact, however, the problem had
mainly been one of deciding whether or not that question
should be dealt with in the draft. In his opinion, the new
paragraph 3 of article 12 was a welcome provision and his
delegation would vote in favour of it.

42. His delegation also considered that the Informal
Consultations Group had been right to state the principle of
the permanent sovereignty of States over their natural
resources in a separate article, even though that principle
was related to the questions dealt with in article 12.

43. The CHAIRMAN invited the members of the Com-
mittee to vote first on article 12 bis (A/CONF.80/C.1/L.62,
para. 3), then on the paragraph 3 which it was proposed to
add to article 12 (A/CONF.80/C.1/L.62, para. 2) and on
article 12 as a whole and, finally, on the draft resolution
concerning article 30 (A/CONF.80/C.1/L.62, para. 6).

Article 12 bis was adopted by 74 votes to none, with 12
abstentions, and was referred to the Drafting Committee,
with the request that it should propose a title for that
article.

Article 12, paragraph 3, was adopted by 84 votes to
none, with 1 abstention.

Article 12, as a whole, was adopted by 86 votes to none,
with 1 abstention, and was referred to the Drafting
Committee, with the request that it should propose a title
for that article.

44. The CHAIRMAN observed that, at its 5th plenary
meeting, the Conference had adopted the text of article 11,
but had deferred a decision on the title of that article until
it had completed its consideration of article 12.6 Conse-
quently, he suggested that the Committee should request
the Drafting Committee also to propose a title for
article 11.

It was so decided.7

45. The CHAIRMAN invited the members of the Com-
mittee to take a decision on the draft resolution concerning
article 30.

The draft resolution concerning article 30 was adopted
by 49 votes to 8, with 30 abstentions, and was referred to
the Drafting Committee, with the request that it should
propose a title for that text.8

6 Ibid., pp. 9-11, 5th plenary meeting, paras. 9-24.

For resumption of the discussion on articles 11, 12 and 12 bis,
see 56th meeting, paias. 37-43.

8 For resumption of the discussion, see 56th meeting, paras-
44-45.



56th meeting - 21 August 1978 141

PROPOSAL TO INSERT A NEW ARTICLE 39 ter (Miscel-
laneous provisions)

46. Mr. MONCAYO (Argentina) withdrew his del-
egation's amendment for the addition of a new article 39
rer(A/CONF.80/C.l/L.58).

Organization of work

[Agenda item 10]

47. Mr. RANJEVA (Madagascar) said he would like to
know when the Drafting Committee expected to complete
its work.

48. Mr. YASSEEN (Chairman of the Drafting Com-
mittee) said that the Drafting Committee would in any
event have to hold one more meeting, at which it hoped to
be able to complete its work.

Hie meeting rose at 6,15 p.m.

56th MEETING

Monday, 21 August 1978, at 11.55 a.m.

Chairman : Mr. RIAD (Egypt)

Consideration of the question of succession of States in
respect of treaties in accordance with resolutions 3496
(XXX) and 31/18 adopted by the General Assembly on
15 December 1975 and 24 November 1976

In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. Ritter (Switzer-
land), Vice-Chairman, took the Chair.

[Agenda item 11] (continued)

REPORT OF THE DRAFTING COMMITTEE ON THE TITLES
AND TEXTS OF ARTICLES 6 AND 7 ADOPTED BY THE
DRAFTING COMMITTEE (A/CONF.80/C.1/5) (concluded)*

Article 7 (Temporal application of the present Convention)
(concluded)*

!• The CHAIRMAN invited the Committee, before taking
UP articles 2, 12 and 12 bis and the resolution concerning
article 30, to resume its consideration of the title and text
of article 7 as adopted by the Drafting Committee
(A/CONF.80/C.1/5). At the 53rd meeting of the Com-
roittee, further discussion of article?1 had been deferred
Pending informal consultations among States with a par-
ticular interest in the article regarding the oral amendment

Resumed from the 53rd meeting.

See 53id meeting, paras. 50-51.

to paragraph 3 proposed in the course of that meeting2 by
the United Kingdom.

2. Sir Ian SINCLAIR (United Kingdom) said that the
period during which the Convention would be open for
signature would expire in August 1979. The purpose of his
delegation's amendment to paragraph 3 had been to cover
the case of a newly independent State coming into being
subsequent to that date, which might wish to make a
declaration regarding provisional application of the Con-
vention. It was a purely technical amendment and he
believed that, as a result of the consultations mentioned by
the Chairman, those delegations which had previously
expressed doubts no longer objected to it.

3. Mrs. BOKOR-SZEGO (Hungary) said her original
hesitation had been caused by inaccurate interpretation of
the English wording of the amendment. She was now
satisfied that the amendment would not prevent the entry
into force of the Convention between States which acceded
to it and those which had signed but not ratified it. She
therefore supported the amendment.

4. Mr. VREEDZAAM (Suriname) said he wished to be
associated with the amendment proposed by the United
Kingdom and by the Netherlands, and particularly with the
reference made by the Netherlands delegation to the case of
the Netherlands Antilles.3

5. Mr. YANGO (Philippines) said that in his delegation's
view the title adopted by the Drafting Committee for
article 7 was a little infelicitous and might cause confusion.
The article preserved the recognized and accepted concept
of the non-retroactivity of treaties. It was true that the
article set out certain exceptions to that principle, but that
should not be allowed to detract from the fact that the
principle itself was clearly stated in paragraph 1 and in the
original wording of the International Law Commission's
text. In his view, there was nothing against the retention of
the original title as well, although the words "and ex-
ceptions" might be added to cover the whole present
substance of the article. In introducing his report on
article 7, the Chairman of the Drafting Committee had
made no reference to the considerations which had
prompted the change in title and he would be happy to
know what they had been.

6. Mr. RYBAKOV (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics)
said that his delegation was prepared to accept the title
adopted by the Drafting Committee. However, there was
force in the arguments advanced by the representative of
the Philippines and if delegations objected to the present
title, it might be better, in order to save time, to revert to
the International Law Commission's title.

7. Mr. ROVINE (United States of America) said that the
International Law Commission's text of article 7 contained

2/&id.,para. 41.
3 Ibid., para. 45.




